ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REGQ ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
May 5, 2003
1:35 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Chair
Senat or Robin Taylor, Vice Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Ceor gi anna Li ncoln
Senator Kim El ton

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 194(L&C)
"An Act creating a tax credit under the Al aska Net Inconme Tax
Act for contributions to regional devel opnent organi zations; and
providing for an effective date."

MOVED SCS CSHB 194 (CRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS ACTI ON
No previous action to record.
W TNESS REG STER

Represent ati ve Tom Ander son

Al aska State Capitol, Room 432
Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor HB 194

Larry Crawford

President, Anchorage Econom c Devel opnent Corporation
No address provided

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 194

Ti m Roger s

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

4501 Sout h Bragaw

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 194

Jim Carter

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- May 5, 2003



Econom ¢ Devel opnent Director

14896 Kenai Spur Hwy

Kenai, AK 99611

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 194

Loren Gerhard

Policy Director for the Southeast Conference
P. O, Box 21989

Juneau, AK 99802

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 194

Mary Jackson

Al aska State Capitol, Room 427

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions on HB 194

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-13, SIDE A

CHAIR THOVAS WAGONER called the Senate Conmunity and Regional
Affairs Standing Cormmittee neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Present
were Senators Gary Stevens, Kim Elton and Chair Thomas Wagoner.
Senat or s Robi n Tayl or and Geor gi anna Li ncol n arrived
nonentarily.

#HB 194
HB 194- REG ONAL DEVELOPMENT ORG TAX CREDI T

REPRESENTATI VE TOM ANDERSON, bill sponsor, paraphrased from the
sponsor st atenent:

HB 194 creates a tax credit for contributions made by
busi nesses to Al askan regi onal devel opnent
organi zations. This legislation limts the tax credit
to the first $10,000 contributed by a business to a
regi onal devel opnent organization. The tax credit
allowed wunder HB 194, when conbined wth credits
al l oned under various other tax credit provisions in
statute, may not exceed the previously established
limt of $150,000. This tax credit wll sunset in
2005.

The definition wused in HB 194 for “regi onal

devel opnent organi zations” is from statutory | anguage
used to define an Alaska Regional Devel opnent

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- May 5, 2003



Organi zati on (ARDOR). The Labor and Commerce Committee
Substitute clarifies these organizations must be
designated by the Department of Comrunity and Econom c
Devel opnent as ARDCORs. There are currently 13 ARDORs
t hroughout the state covering all of Al aska except a
section of the Interior and a portion of the Lower
Yukon.

The ARDOR program is based on the notion that locally
driven initiatives, in partnership wwth the State, can
nost effectively stimulate econom c devel opnment and
produce healthy, sustainable |ocal economes. The tax

credit established by HB 194 will encourage businesses
to contribute to the ARDORs and assist regional
devel opnent or gani zati ons’ solicitation of
contributions by having a tax credit as a further
i ncentive.

SENATOR ROBI N TAYLOR asked why the Legislature should give a tax
credit thus dimnishing revenue to the state in this instance
while voting to increase and add new taxes in other areas.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON advised there is no fiscal inpact wth
this bill. O course that’s debatable if a corporation opted not
to give to one of the exenpted entities and instead gave to an
ARDOR. Wiether this would affect corporate taxes from the state
| evel is debatable but Mark Graber with the Tax Division said it
woul d not .

This woul d encourage devel opnment in |ocal comunities from | arge
corporations that have budgeted noney for giving every year.
Currently they get tax credits for certain contributions, but
can’t get any for contributing to | ocal ARDORs.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked for exanples of how this plan would
wor K.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON outlined the role the Anchorage Econom c
Devel opnent Corporation played to expand the airport, to bring
Federal Express to town, and to contribute to Providence Al aska
Medical Center. Al the ARDORs don’'t work in exactly the sane
way, but they allow taxpayers the opportunity to support
econom ¢ devel opnent .

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked if the corporations gave for a

specific project or nmade a general contribution that the ARDOR
all ocated as they see fit.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- May 5, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON suggest ed one of t he ARDOR
representatives could better answer that question. He thought a
contribution could be earmarked but it probably couldn't be a
definitive contribution.

There were no further questions for Representative Anderson.

LARRY CRAWORD, President of the Anchorage Econom c Devel opnent
Corporation, pointed out this provided a tool to all regional
devel opment corporations around the state. It should have a
positive inpact in terns of econom c developnent and provide
nore incentive for the private sector to work with ARDORS and
that sector creates wealth.

G ven the current economc situation, it’s inportant to devel op
as many creative tools as possible for use at the local |evel
HB 194 is an effective tool for that purpose.

SENATOR ELTON stated his concern that this may nmake it possible
for a business to give $10,000 to an ARDOR and earmark the noney
for a project that would specifically enhance that business. In
effect that business would receive a tax credit to contribute
noney to benefit their conpany. He suggested it mght be
advi sabl e to prohibit earnmarked contributions.

MR. CRAWCRD advised he could only respond with regard to how
AEDC does business. In that case, all contributions are nade in
the form of a nenbership and the board of directors determ nes
the overall direction for how nonies are spent.

SENATOR ELTON asked if it was correct that amending HB 194 to
prohi bit the earmarking of funds would make no difference in the
way AEDC oper at es.

MR. CRAWORD said that was correct.

SENATOR TAYLOR remarked the wuniversity should be exam ned as
wel | because of the controversy that arose over the question of
how much private corporations could deduct from their Al aska
corporate taxes to make endownent gifts to the university. The
commttee should know whether any of those endownents are from
busi nesses that are then benefited directly or indirectly by the
subj ect they have chosen to contribute to. For exanple, did an
engineering firm that builds bridges contribute noney to the
School of Engineering to inprove bridge design? Al though he has

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- May 5, 2003



no particular concern wth earmarking contributions, he though
t he poi nt should be raised.

MR. CRAWORD clarified that funds could be earnmarked to sponsor
a general - purpose event but not for an event for the purpose of
pronoting their project.

TI M ROGERS, Legislative Program Coordinator for the Minicipality
of Anchorage, testified the municipality has been the public
side of the public/private partnership with AEDC for many years.
They provide AEDC just under a half mllion dollars a year and
believe that ARDOR is a critical conponent in attracting new
econoni ¢ devel opnent to the Anchorage area.

The bill is crafted to have mninmal fiscal inpact to the state
other than to attract new business and therefore new revenue to
the state. He noted Anchorage Mayor George Wierch sent a letter
of support as well.

JIM CARTER from the Econom c Developnent District of Kenai
testified they have used the noney to support public events in
Kenai Peninsula communities nine tines in the |ast two years.

LOREN GERHARD, Policy Director for the Southeast Conference,
testified he understood this would work in the sane way as
contributions to scholarship funds the University of Al aska
receives from corporate donors. The Sout heast Conference
established a scholarship fund with the University of Al aska and
one corporate donor nmade a sizeable contribution to that fund,
|l argely due to the tax credit.

This would allow corporations that are already taking advantage
of the tax credit opportunity to redirect some of their funds to
ARDORs if they elect to do so. It would be up the ARDORs to
convince those corporations that what they are asking for is
worthy of their support. It sinply allows those corporate donors
one nore avenue to reinvest in their communities. Economc
devel opnment as a concept is generally good business for nost of
t hese | arger corporations.

Wth regard to earmarking funds, he would have no problem either
way as long as it allowed a way to access the tax exenpt
funding. Wth the tightening of the state budget, it’'s an
uncertain tine for ARDORs and they need every available tool to
support their budgets.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- May 5, 2003



SENATOR ELTON remarked it is his opinion the Southeast
Conference, which works from Ketchikan and Metlakatla north to
Yakutat, is one of the best ARDORs in the state and he
appreci ated everything they’ ve done.

Wth regard to earmarking funds, he asked what “direct
operation” meant on page 3, line 7.

MR. CGERHARD replied that would be simlar to the grant they
receive from the state. The reason they need every possible
source of unencunbered funds is because they |everage that noney
as a match for grants.

SENATOR ELTON asked if direct operation would preclude a cash
contribution for a specific project.

MR. GERHARD believed it would. As M. Crawford pointed out, no
contributions have been earnmarked to date.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked whether any contributors were available to
testify.

CHAIR WAGONER said everyone that signed up to testify had done
so.

SENATOR TAYLOR specul ated the contributions made in the form of
a nmenbership are witten off in that tax year as a federal
deduction against incone but with regard to the state, each
dollar contributed to an ARDOR is subtracted fromnet tax due to
t he state.

MR. CGERHARD acknow edged that wasn't entirely clear to him but
he thought it worked that way.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he would be remss if he didn't nention
that, although there is no personal incone tax in the state,
Al askan corporate inconme taxes are anong the highest. In |ight
of that, there mght be a fiscal inpact not reflected in the
fiscal note. There could be a nunber of businesses that don’t
currently take advantage of available tax credit options but
i ke ARDORS.

MR. CGERHARD agreed that m ght be the case, but the effects would
be mnimal. Cenerally they found it is difficult to attract
| arge corporate donations because they' re already spoken for.
This would allow a corporation the opportunity to do sonething a

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- May 5, 2003



bit different and would make contributions to ARDORs a bit npre
attracti ve.

SENATOR TAYLOR stated he has always supported soneone getting a
credit against taxes or elimnating taxes. He nmade a notion to
adopt amendnent #1 then objected for discussion purposes.

MARY JACKSON, staff to Senator Wagoner, explained the anmendnent
removes the sunset provision found throughout the bill and
provi des an effective date of July 1, 2003.

CHAIR WAGONER added the Legislature spends considerable tine
passing bills because of sunset clauses and he saw no reason for
having one in this bill, particularly in light of the fact that
| egi slators nay review bills at any tine.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked Representative Anderson if he had any
obj ections to the anmendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON replied he did not object.
SENATOR TAYLOR wi t hdrew his objection to anmendnent #1.

SENATOR ELTON asked what other exenptions they were elimnating
t he sunset from

M5. JACKSON explained this elimnates the sunset provisions in
the bill for just the proposed ARDOR exenpti on.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if the fisheries education credit was still
in the statutes.

M5. JACKSON said that was called the fisheries resource |anding
tax education credit and that is in Section 16 of the bill. She
assured him this legislation touches none of the existing
statute provisions.

SENATOR TAYLOR pointed out this was against corporate taxes and
t hat was agai nst fisheries resource |anding taxes.

SENATOR LINCOLN observed the anmendnent renoved the sunset
cl ause. She expressed her continuing support of ARDORs, but
preferred to keep the 2005 sunset provision in the bill. The
fiscal inmpact to the state wasn’t clear, as indicated by the
fiscal note.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- May 5, 2003



CHAI R WAGONER replied the Departnent of Revenue would ask for a
review if the bill negatively inpacted state revenues.

SENATOR LI NCOLN pointed out that would depend on who was in the
driver’s seat.

CHAI R WAGONER agreed then pointed out this legislation could be
an avenue to support some of the projects that were funded
t hrough the Science and Technol ogy Foundation that was recently
el i m nat ed.

SENATOR ELTON noted the chart from the Departnent of Revenue
showed the tax credits for FYOO were about $2.3 million and for
FYO1 they were about $2.2 million and for FYO02 they were about
$3.1 mllion. He couldn't renenber that the Departnment of
Revenue ever approached him to discuss current exenptions, but
he thought it nade sense to revisit the issue in several years
to review how nmuch noney went out of the system because of the
exenption.

SENATOR LI NCOLN made a notion to anend to renove the provisions
of anmendnent #1.

M5. JACKSON advised anendnent #1 should be defeated if the
intention was to repeal the provisions.

CHAIR WAGONER called for a roll <call on anmendnent #1. The
anendnent passed with Senators Gary Stevens, Taylor and Chair
Wagoner voting yea and Senators Lincoln and Elton voting nay.

SENATOR TAYLOR npbved SCS CSHB 194 (CRA) and attached fi scal
notes from commttee wth individual recomendations. There
bei ng no objection, it was so ordered.

SENATOR ELTON suggested that the sponsor contact M. Gaber from
the Departnent of Revenue to address this question before the
hearing in the Labor and Commerce Commttee. He advised he would
contact himas well.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON agreed to do so.
#

CHAIR WAGONER adjourned the Senate Community and Regiona
Affairs Conmttee at 2:20 pm

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- May 5, 2003



